
 

 

Executive Member Decisions 
 

Friday, 3rd February, 2023 
10.00 am 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
  
1.   Proposed School Admissions Arrangements 2024 - 

2025 
 

 Appendix 1 Admission policy for community and 
voluntary controlled infant and primary schools for 
202425 academic year 
Appendix 2 Admission policy for community controlled 
junior schools for 202425 academic year 
Appendix 3 Published admission numbers for 202425 
EMD Proposed School Admissions Arrangements 2024-
2025 

2 - 16 

 
 

Date Published: Date Not Specified  
Denise Park, Chief Executive 

 

Public Document Pack



Page 1 of 6  

 
 

Admission policy for community and voluntary controlled infant 
and primary schools for 2024/25 academic year 

Children to be admitted 
The law does not require any child to receive a suitable education until the start of the term following the 

fifth birthday. In Blackburn with Darwen we operate a single start date of September for all children who will 

become 5 during that school year. All children who have their fifth birthday between September 1, 2024 and 

August 31, 2025 may start school in the Autumn Term 2024. 

Deferred admission 
Parent(s)/carer(s) can delay their child starting school until the term after their fifth birthday. This is known as 

deferred admission. Parent(s)/carer(s) who are considering deferred admission are strongly advised to still 

apply for a school place by the closing date. The offer of a reception place will be kept open, even if the child 

does not take it up until later in the academic year. Free nursery places would cease at the end of the term 

when the child turns five, and your child may also attend part time between September and the point at 

which they reach compulsory school age.  

If parent(s)/carer(s) delay their child starting school until September 2025, they will have to re-apply for a 

place in the school as this is a new academic year. The original offer of a place in the reception class will be 

withdrawn. The Admission Authority will make the decision about which year group the child can be offered a 

place in, on the basis of the individual circumstances of each case.  

If the child is refused admission to the school, then parent(s)/carer(s) have a right of appeal to an 

independent appeal panel, but please be aware that the school may claim ‘class size prejudice’ at your appeal. 

Please note that this right of appeal does not apply if your child is offered a place in another year group at the 

school.  

The law states that all children must receive suitable education from the term after their fifth birthday. If you 

do not make suitable arrangements you could be breaking the law and be prosecuted. 

Making an application 
Applications for admission for September 2024 should be made on the common application form between 

September 4, 2023 and January 15, 2024. It is not normally possible to change the order of your preferences 

for schools after the closing date. 

Parent(s)/carer(s) must complete the Local Authority application form, stating three preferences. 

Applications should be made online at www.blackburn.gov.uk/admissions. For families who are unable to 

apply online, application forms can be requested from the Schools Admissions Team, Telephone - 01254 

666605 or Email - admissions@blackburn.gov.uk 

Parents and carers who apply online will receive the decision letter by email and will able to view which school 
their child has been offered on the online parent portal on Tuesday 16 April 2024. Parents and carers who 
apply using the paper application form will receive the decision letter by post on or after Tuesday 16 April 

Page 2

Agenda Item 1

http://www.blackburn.gov.uk/admissions
admissions@blackburn.gov.uk


Page 2 of 6  

2024. 

Admission Arrangements for infant and primary community and voluntary 
controlled schools for 2024/25 academic year 
All preferences expressed will be considered equally. If the number of children requiring admission does not 

exceed the school’s published admission number, all the children will be offered admission. If the number of 

children requiring admission exceeds the published admission number, then the Local Authority will consider 

all preferences equally against the oversubscription criteria shown below. 

Oversubscription Criteria 
Children with an Education, Health and Care plan (EHCP), for whom the preferred school is named in the 

plan will be admitted first. The remaining applicants who have named this school as a 1st, 2nd or 3rd 

preference will then be considered equally against the Council’s admission policy, in the priority order given 

below: 

a) A 'looked after child' or a child who was previously looked after but immediately after being looked 

after became subject to an adoption, child arrangements or special guardianship order, including 

those who appear to this admission authority to have been in state care outside of England and 

ceased to be in state care as a result of being adopted. 

‘A looked after child’ is a child who is (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being provided with 

accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social services functions (see the 

definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989) at the time of making an application to a 

school. An ‘adoption order’ is an order under the Adoption Act 1976 (see Section 12 adoption 

orders) and children who were adopted under the Adoption and Children Act 2002 (see Section 46 

adoption orders). A ‘child arrangements order’ is an order settling the arrangements to be made as 

to the person with whom the child is to live under Section 8 of the Children Act 1989 as amended 

by Section 14 of the Children and Families Act 2014. Section 14A of the Children Act 1989 defines a 

‘special guardianship order’ as an order appointing one or more individuals to be a child’s special 

guardian (or special guardians). A child is regarded as having been in state care outside of England 

if they were in the care of or were accommodated by a public authority, a religious organisation, 

or any other provider of care whose sole or main purpose is to benefit society. 

b) Children with an older sibling (sibling means a brother or sister, half brother or sister, adopted 

brother or sister, step brother or sister, not cousins, or the child of the parent/carer’s partner, and in 

every case, the child should be living in the same family unit at the same address) who will still be 

attending the preferred school when the younger child is admitted; 

c) Children with proven exceptional medical, social or welfare needs which are directly relevant to the 

school concerned. If you wish to be considered under this category you must provide appropriate 

supporting evidence with your application from a doctor, social worker or other professional. This 

evidence must explain why the preferred school is the most suitable and what difficulties would be 

caused if the child had to attend another school; 

d) Geographical proximity - under this category, the remaining places will be offered to children who 

live nearest to the preferred school. The distance will be measured in a straight line between the 

home front door and the main gate of the school using a computerised programme. 

 

 

 

Page 3



Page 3 of 6  

Tie-breaker 
If category (b), (c) or (d) is oversubscribed, geographical proximity (as set out in category (d) will be used as 

the ‘tie-breaker’ to decide between the remaining cases. If after measuring distances it is still not possible to 

decide on the child/ren to be offered admission (for example two children living in the same block of flats or 

in the same house) the Local Authority will then use a random draw allocation (which is carried out 

automatically by the local authority’s computerised system) to decide which of the children can be offered a 

place. 

Priority for Twins/Multiple births 
Where there are twins, etc wanting admission and there is only a single place left within the admission 

number, the Local Authority will exercise as much flexibility as possible within the requirements of infant 

class sizes. In exceptional circumstances admission authorities are able to offer places to children of multiple 

births, even when this means breaching infant class size limits. This may also apply to siblings who are in the 

same year group. 

NOTE – Criterion (c) medical, social, welfare reasons 
If you feel that there are exceptional medical/social/welfare needs relating to your child which support the 

need for your child to attend a particular school, and wish your application to be considered under criterion 

(c) you must state this on your application form AND provide appropriate written supporting evidence for 

your application from a doctor, social worker or other professional. This evidence must explain why the 

preferred school is the most suitable and what difficulties would be caused if the child had to attend another 

school. 

This evidence should accompany the application form. If necessary, parents can submit the application form 

and send the supporting evidence at a later date but the supporting evidence MUST be received by the Local 

Authority on or before the closing date for applications. It is the parent’s responsibility to ensure that the 

Local Authority receives the supporting evidence. 

If you do not provide the supporting evidence on or before the closing date, then it will not be possible to 

consider your application under the medical/social/welfare criterion. 

Please bear in mind the following points in relation to this criterion: 

1) Only exceptional reasons associated with the child and directly relevant to the suitability of that 

specific school (i.e. showing why the child needs to be admitted to that particular school) are 

normally accepted under this criterion. 

2) All schools can make provision for special educational needs and can also manage common 

conditions – e.g. asthma, diabetes, epilepsy. 

After the closing date, during the early stages of the allocations process, all applications which have 

requested consideration on the grounds of medical/social/welfare need are considered separately by a 

panel from the Admission Authority. This involves considering all statements and evidence provided by 

parents/carers to support the application. The panel may, at their own discretion, contact parents/carers 

and third parties (with parental consent) to request further information where this is needed to reach a 

decision. 

The Panel’s focus in assessing each claim for consideration under this criterion will be to assess whether the 

evidence provided (a) actually confirms that this child has an exceptional medical/social/welfare need AND 

(b) demonstrates a clear and exceptional need for this child to attend that specific school for reasons arising 

from the exceptional medical/social/welfare need. 

Where the reasons claimed are not considered exceptional or do not disclose an exceptional need for the 

child to attend that specific school, then the application will be dealt with under the other admission criteria 

Page 4



Page 4 of 6  

for the school(s) requested. 

Late applications for admission 
Where there are extenuating circumstances for an application being received after the closing date for 

applications, and it is before the cut-off date (11 March 2024) then it will be considered alongside all the 

others. 

Otherwise, applications which are received after the closing date will be considered after all the others, and 

placed on the waiting list in order according to the admission criteria. 

Address of pupil 
The address used on the common application form must be the current one at the time of application, i.e. 

the family’s main residence. If the address changes subsequently, the parents should notify the school. 

Where the parents live at different addresses, and there is shared parenting, the address used will normally 

be the one where the child wakes up for the majority of Monday to Friday mornings. If there is any doubt 

about this, then the address of the Child Benefit recipient will be used. 

Parents may be asked to show evidence of the claim that is being made for the address, e.g. identity cards of 

various sorts showing the child’s address as the one claimed. Where there is dispute about the correct 

address to use, the Local Authority reserve the right to make enquiries of any relevant third parties, e.g. the 

child’s G.P. Council Tax Office, Electoral Registration Officer, utilities provider. For children of UK Service 

personnel and other Crown Servants returning to the area proof of the posting is all that is required. 

Where more than one person with Parental Responsibility for the child submits an application for the same 

child, then neither application will be considered and the parents/carers will be asked to agree a single 

application. The local authority will require the parents to resolve matters between themselves, taking legal 

advice if necessary and inform the local authority which application should be processed. PLEASE NOTE - if 

agreement is not reached or a legal decision is not made before the closing date, this may affect the chances 

of your child being allocated a place at the preferred school(s). 

Non Routine Admissions 
In Year admissions 
It sometimes happens that a child needs to change school other than at the “normal” time; such admissions 

are known as in-year admissions. Parents need to submit an “In Year Application Form” to the Fair Access 

Team. If there is a place in the appropriate school, your child will normally be admitted. If there is no place, 

the place will be refused but information will be provided about how to appeal against this refusal. 

Admission of children outside their normal age group 
Parents may seek a place for their child outside of their normal age group, for example, if the child is gifted 

and talented or has experienced problems such as ill health. Parents of a summer born child (born between 

1 April and 31 August) may choose not to send that child to school until the September following their fifth 

birthday and may request that they are admitted out of their normal age group – to reception rather than 

year 1. 

Children who are already of school age 
Parent(s)/carer(s) must submit their written request for admission out of the normal age group to the Local 

Authority. If their request is agreed and a place is available in the requested year group, the child will be 

admitted. 

Children seeking admission to reception in the September after their fifth birthday 
Parent(s)/carer(s) will need to submit a normal Common Application Form (CAF) to the Local Authority (in 

Page 5



Page 5 of 6  

writing or online) for admission into the normal age group at the same time as they submit a written request 
to the Governing Body for their child to be admitted out of the normal age group. 

Please note: The Local Authority will not honour a decision made by another admission authority on 

admission out of the normal age group. Parent(s)/carer(s), therefore, should consider whether to request 

admission out of the normal year group at all of their preferred schools, rather than just their first 

preference school. 

The Local Authority will make a decision on the request before the offer date if at all possible. 

If the request is agreed, the parent(s)/carer(s) must make a new application for the next main admission 

round the following year, and their current application for the normal age group should be withdrawn 

before a place is offered. 

If their request for admission outside the normal age group is refused, parent(s)/carer(s) must decide 

whether to accept the offer of a place for the normal age group that they receive from the Local Authority, 

or to refuse it and make an in- year application to the Local Authority for admission to year one for the 

September following their child’s fifth birthday. 

Making the decision 
Parent(s)/carer(s) seeking admission of their child outside their normal age group must send their written 

request to the Local Authority. It is the responsibility of the parent(s)/carer(s) to provide the Local Authority 

with all relevant information relating to this request, including the parent(s)/carer(s) views; information 

about the child’s academic, social and emotional development; medical history and views of a medical 

professional (where relevant); whether the child would naturally have fallen into a lower age group if it were 

not for being born prematurely; and whether the child has previously been educated out of their normal age 

group. 

The Local Authority is required to take into account the views of the Head Teacher on the application as well 

as the information from the parent(s)/carer(s). The Local Authority will make their decision on the basis of 

the circumstances of each individual case, and in the best interests of the child concerned. 

The Local Authority will then inform the parent/carer of their decision on the year group the child should be 

admitted to and will provide the reasons for their decision. 

Parent(s)/carer(s) have a statutory right to appeal to an independent admission appeal panel against the 

refusal of a place at a school for which they have applied. As the purpose of the appeals process is to 

consider whether a child should be admitted to a particular school, the right of appeal does not apply if they 

are offered a place at the school but it is not in their preferred year group. However, they may make a 

complaint about an admission authority’s decision not to admit their child outside their normal age group. 

Appeals 
Where the Local Authority is unable to offer a place because the school is oversubscribed, parents have the 

right to appeal to an independent admission appeal panel, set up under the School Standards and 

Framework Act, 1998, as amended by the Education Act, 2002. Parents should complete and return the 

appeal form to the Local Authority by 17 May 2024. Parents will have the opportunity to submit their case to 

the panel in writing and also to attend in order to present their case. Parents normally receive 14 days’ 

notice of the place and time of the hearing. 

Appeals which are received after the deadline will be slotted into the schedule where this is possible. There 

is no guarantee that this will happen and late appeals may be heard after the stipulated date at a second 

round of hearings. The schedule is subject to change depending upon the availability of appeal panel 

members, clerks, venues and the number of appeals for each school (which will vary year on year). 

If your family is moving house, your application and appeal will be considered as being made from your old 

Page 6



Page 6 of 6  

address until you provide suitable evidence of a permanent change of address, e.g. exchange of contracts on 

your house purchase or the signed tenancy agreement and rent book for your new address. 

Please note that you cannot re-appeal for a place at a school within the same school year unless there has 

been relevant, significant and material change in the family circumstances. 

This right of appeal against the Local Authority’s decision does not prevent you from making an appeal in 

respect of any other school. 

Fraudulent applications 
Where the Local Authority discovers that a child has been awarded a place as the result of an intentionally 

misleading application from a parent, for example, a false claim of residence which effectively denies a place 

to a child with a stronger claim, then the Local Authority may withdraw the offer of the place. The 

application will be considered afresh and a right of appeal offered if a place is refused. 

Waiting list 
Where a school has more applications than places, the oversubscription criteria will be used. Children who 

are not admitted will have their name placed on a waiting list. The names on this waiting list will be in the 

order resulting from the application of the oversubscription criteria. Since the date of application cannot be 

a criterion for the order of names on the waiting list, late applicants for the school will be slotted into the 

order according to the extent to which they meet the criteria. Thus it is possible that a child who moves into 

the area later may have a higher priority than one who has been on the waiting list for some time. If a place 

becomes available within the admission number, the child whose name is at the top of the list at that time 

will be offered a place. This is not dependent on whether an appeal has been submitted. Please note that 

looked after children, previously looked after children and those allocated a place at the school in 

accordance with the Fair Access protocol must take precedence over those on the waiting list. 

This waiting list will operate until 31 December 2024. 
 

Page 7



Page 1 of 5 

 
 

Admission policy for community controlled junior schools for 
2024/25 academic year 

Making an application 
Applications for admission for September 2024 should be made on the common application form between 

September 4, 2023 and January 15, 2024. It is not normally possible to change the order of your preferences 

for schools after the closing date. 

Parent(s)/carer(s) must complete the Local Authority application form, stating three preferences. Applications 
should be made online at www.blackburn.gov.uk/admissions. For families who are unable to apply online, 
application forms can be requested from the Schools Admissions Team, Telephone - 01254 666605 or Email – 
admissions@blackburn.gov.uk or from the community infant schools. 

Parents and carers who apply online will receive the decision letter by email and will able to view which school 
their child has been offered on the online parent portal on Tuesday 16 April 2024. Parents and carers who 
apply using the paper application form will receive the decision letter by post on or after Tuesday 16 April 
2024. Parents and carers of children not admitted will be informed of the reason and offered an alternative 
place by the Local Authority.  

All preferences expressed will be considered equally. If the number of children requiring admission does not 
exceed the school’s published admission number, all the children will be offered admission. If the number of 
children requiring admission exceeds the published admission number, then the Local Authority will consider 
all preferences equally against the oversubscription criteria shown below. 

Oversubscription Criteria 
Children with an Education, Health and Care plan (EHCP), for whom the preferred school is named in the 

plan will be admitted first. The remaining applicants who have named this school as a 1st, 2nd or 3rd 

preference will then be considered equally against the Council’s admission policy, in the priority order given 

below: 

a) A 'looked after child' or a child who was previously looked after but immediately after being looked 

after became subject to an adoption, child arrangements or special guardianship order, including 

those who appear to this admission authority to have been in state care outside of England and 

ceased to be in state care as a result of being adopted. 

‘A looked after child’ is a child who is (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being provided with 

accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social services functions (see the 

definition in Section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989) at the time of making an application to a school. 

An ‘adoption order’ is an order under the Adoption Act 1976 (see Section 12 adoption orders) and 

children who were adopted under the Adoption and Children Act 2002 (see Section 46 adoption 

orders). A ‘child arrangements order’ is an order settling the arrangements to be made as to the 

person with whom the child is to live under Section 8 of the Children Act 1989 as amended by 

Section 14 of the Children and Families Act 2014. Section 14A of the Children Act 1989 defines a 

‘special guardianship order’ as an order appointing one or more individuals to be a child’s special 

Page 8

http://www.blackburn.gov.uk/admissions
mailto:admissions@blackburn.gov.uk


Page 2 of 5 

guardian (or special guardians). A child is regarded as having been in state care outside of England if 

they were in the care of or were accommodated by a public authority, a religious organisation, or 

any other provider of care whose sole or main purpose is to benefit society. 

b) Pupils completing Year 2 at Audley Infant School if applying for admission at Audley Junior School, or 

Longshaw Infant School if applying for Longshaw Junior School or Meadowhead Infant School if 

applying for admission at Meadowhead Junior School, or Shadsworth Infant School if applying for 

admission at Shadsworth Junior School. 

c) Children with an older sibling (sibling means a brother or sister, half brother or sister, adopted 

brother or sister, step brother or sister, not cousins, or the child of the parent/carer’s partner, and in 

every case, the child should be living in the same family unit at the same address) who will still be 

attending the preferred school when the younger child is admitted; 

d) Children with proven exceptional medical, social or welfare needs which are directly relevant to the 

school concerned. If you wish to be considered under this category you must provide appropriate 

supporting evidence with your application from a doctor, social worker or other professional. This 

evidence must explain why the preferred school is the most suitable and what difficulties would be 

caused if the child had to attend another school; 

e) Geographical proximity - under this category, the remaining places will be offered to children who 

live nearest to the preferred school. The distance will be measured in a straight line between the 

home front door and the main gate of the school using a computerised programme. 

Tie-breaker 
If category (b), (c), (d) or (e) is oversubscribed, geographical proximity (as set out in category (e) will be used 

as the ‘tie-breaker’ to decide between the remaining cases. If after measuring distances it is still not possible 

to decide on the child/ren to be offered admission (for example two children living in the same block of flats 

or in the same house) the Local Authority will then use a random draw allocation (which is carried out 

automatically by the local authority’s computerised system) to decide which of the children can be offered a 

place. 

Priority for Twins/Multiple births 
Where there are twins, etc. wanting admission and there is only a single place left within the admission 

number, the Local Authority will exercise as much flexibility as possible within the requirements of the 

School Admissions Code. In exceptional circumstances admission authorities are able to offer places to 

children of multiple birth, even when this means breaching the published admission number. This may also 

apply to siblings who are in the same year group. 

NOTE – Criterion (d) medical, social, welfare reasons 
If you feel that there are exceptional medical/social/welfare needs relating to your child which support the 

need for your child to attend a particular school, and wish your application to be considered under criterion 

(d) you must state this on your application form AND provide appropriate written supporting evidence for 

your application from a doctor, social worker or other professional. This evidence must explain why the 

preferred school is the most suitable and what difficulties would be caused if the child had to attend another 

school. 

This evidence should accompany the application form. If necessary, parents can submit the application form 

and send the supporting evidence at a later date but the supporting evidence MUST be received by the Local 

Authority on or before the closing date for applications. It is the parent’s responsibility to ensure that the 

Local Authority receives the supporting evidence. If you do not provide the supporting evidence on or before 

the closing date, then it will not be possible to consider your application under the medical/social/welfare 

criterion. 

Page 9



Page 3 of 5 

Please bear in mind the following points in relation to this criterion: 

1) Only exceptional reasons associated with the child and directly relevant to the suitability of that 

specific school (i.e. showing why the child needs to be admitted to that particular school) are 

normally accepted under this criterion. 

2) All schools can make provision for special educational needs and can also manage common 

conditions – e.g. asthma, diabetes, epilepsy. 

After the closing date, during the early stages of the allocations process, all applications which have 

requested consideration on the grounds of medical/social/welfare need are considered separately by a 

panel from the Admission Authority. This involves considering all statements and evidence provided by 

parents/carers to support the application. The panel may, at their own discretion, contact parents/carers 

and third parties (with parental consent) to request further information where this is needed to reach a 

decision. 

The Panel’s focus in assessing each claim for consideration under this criterion will be to assess whether the 

evidence provided (a) actually confirms that this child has an exceptional medical/social/welfare need AND 

(b) demonstrates a clear and exceptional need for this child to attend that specific school for reasons arising 

from the exceptional medical/social/welfare need. 

Where the reasons claimed are not considered exceptional or do not disclose an exceptional need for the 

child to attend that specific school, then the application will be dealt with under the other admission criteria 

for the school(s) requested. 

Late applications for admission 
Where there are extenuating circumstances for an application being received after the closing date for 

applications, and it is before the cut-off date (11 March 2024) then it will be considered alongside all the 

others. 

Otherwise, applications which are received after the closing date will be considered after all the others, and 

placed on the waiting list in order according to the admission criteria. 

Address of pupil 
The address used on the common application form must be the current one at the time of application, i.e. 

the family’s main residence. If the address changes subsequently, the parents should notify the school. 

Where the parents live at different addresses, and there is shared parenting, the address used will normally 

be the one where the child wakes up for the majority of Monday to Friday mornings. If there is any doubt 

about this, then the address of the Child Benefit recipient will be used. 

Parents may be asked to show evidence of the claim that is being made for the address, e.g. identity cards of 

various sorts showing the child’s address as the one claimed. Where there is dispute about the correct 

address to use, the Local Authority reserve the right to make enquiries of any relevant third parties, e.g. the 

child’s G.P. Council Tax Office, Electoral Registration Officer, utilities provider. For children of UK Service 

personnel and other Crown Servants returning to the area proof of the posting is all that is required. 

Where more than one person with Parental Responsibility for the child submits an application for the same 

child, then neither application will be considered and the parents/carers will be asked to agree a single 

application. The local authority will require the parents to resolve matters between themselves, taking legal 

advice if necessary and inform the local authority which application should be processed. PLEASE NOTE - if 

agreement is not reached or a legal decision is not made before the closing date, this may affect the chances 

of your child being allocated a place at the preferred school(s). 

 

Page 10



Page 4 of 5 

Non Routine Admissions 
In Year admissions 
It sometimes happens that a child needs to change school other than at the “normal” time; such admissions 

are known as in-year admissions. Parents need to submit an “In Year Application Form” to the Fair Access 

Team. If there is a place in the appropriate school, your child will normally be admitted. If there is no place, 

the place will be refused but information will be provided about how to appeal against this refusal. 

Admission of children outside their normal age group 
Parents may seek a place for their child outside of their normal age group, for example, if the child is gifted 

and talented or has experienced problems such as ill health. 

Children making in-year applications (Yr 3 outside the normal admission round, or Yrs 4, 5 or 
6) 
Parent(s)/carer(s) must submit their written request for admission out of the normal age group to the Local 
Authority. If their request is agreed and a place is available in the requested year group, the child will be 
admitted. 

Children applying for a Year 3 place in the Normal admissions round, outside their normal age 
group. 
Parent(s)/carer(s) will need to submit a normal Common Application Form (CAF) to the Local Authority (in 
writing or online) for admission into the normal age group at the same time as they submit a written request 
to the Governing Body for their child to be admitted out of the normal age group.  Please note: The Local 
Authority will not honour a decision made by another admission authority on admission out of the normal age 
group. Parent(s)/carer(s), therefore, should consider whether to request admission out of the normal year 
group at all of their preferred schools, rather than just their first preference school.  

The Local Authority will make a decision on the request for admission outside the normal age group before 
the offer date if at all possible. If the request is agreed, the parent(s)/carer(s) must make a new application for 
the next main admission round the following year, and their current application for the normal age group 
should be withdrawn before a place is offered. If their request for admission outside the normal age group is 
refused, parent(s)/carer(s) must decide whether to remain in their current school (if it is a Primary School) or 
if on roll at an Infant school decide to either accept the offer of a place for the normal age group that they 
receive from the Local Authority, or to refuse it and make an in-year application to the Local Authority for 
admission to year four at the Junior school for the following September. 

Making the decision 
Parent(s)/carer(s) seeking admission of their child outside their normal age group must send their written 

request to the Local Authority. It is the responsibility of the parent(s)/carer(s) to provide the Local Authority 

with all relevant information relating to this request, including the parent(s)/carer(s) views; information 

about the child’s academic, social and emotional development; medical history and views of a medical 

professional (where relevant); whether the child would naturally have fallen into a lower age group if it were 

not for being born prematurely; and whether the child has previously been educated out of their normal age 

group. 

The Local Authority is required to take into account the views of the Head Teacher on the application as well 

as the information from the parent(s)/carer(s). The Local Authority will make their decision on the basis of 

the circumstances of each individual case, and in the best interests of the child concerned. 

The Local Authority will then inform the parent/carer of their decision on the year group the child should be 

admitted to and will provide the reasons for their decision. 

Parent(s)/carer(s) have a statutory right to appeal to an independent admission appeal panel against the 

refusal of a place at a school for which they have applied. As the purpose of the appeals process is to 

Page 11



Page 5 of 5 

consider whether a child should be admitted to a particular school, the right of appeal does not apply if they 

are offered a place at the school but it is not in their preferred year group. However, they may make a 

complaint about an admission authority’s decision not to admit their child outside their normal age group. 

Appeals 
Where the Local Authority is unable to offer a place because the school is oversubscribed, parents have the 

right to appeal to an independent admission appeal panel, set up under the School Standards and 

Framework Act, 1998, as amended by the Education Act, 2002. Parents should complete and return the 

appeal form to the Local Authority by 17 May 2024. Parents will have the opportunity to submit their case to 

the panel in writing and also to attend in order to present their case. Parents normally receive 14 days’ 

notice of the place and time of the hearing. 

Appeals which are received after the deadline will be slotted into the schedule where this is possible. There 

is no guarantee that this will happen and late appeals may be heard after the stipulated date at a second 

round of hearings. The schedule is subject to change depending upon the availability of appeal panel 

members, clerks, venues and the number of appeals for each school (which will vary year on year). 

If your family is moving house, your application and appeal will be considered as being made from your old 

address until you provide suitable evidence of a permanent change of address, e.g. exchange of contracts on 

your house purchase or the signed tenancy agreement and rent book for your new address. 

Please note that you cannot re-appeal for a place at a school within the same school year unless there has 

been relevant, significant and material change in the family circumstances. 

This right of appeal against the Local Authority’s decision does not prevent you from making an appeal in 

respect of any other school. 

Fraudulent applications 
Where the Local Authority discovers that a child has been awarded a place as the result of an intentionally 

misleading application from a parent, for example, a false claim of residence which effectively denies a place 

to a child with a stronger claim, then the Local Authority may withdraw the offer of the place. The 

application will be considered afresh and a right of appeal offered if a place is refused. 

Waiting list 
Where a school has more applications than places, the oversubscription criteria will be used. Children who 

are not admitted will have their name placed on a waiting list. The names on this waiting list will be in the 

order resulting from the application of the oversubscription criteria. Since the date of application cannot be 

a criterion for the order of names on the waiting list, late applicants for the school will be slotted into the 

order according to the extent to which they meet the criteria. Thus it is possible that a child who moves into 

the area later may have a higher priority than one who has been on the waiting list for some time. If a place 

becomes available within the admission number, the child whose name is at the top of the list at that time 

will be offered a place. This is not dependent on whether an appeal has been submitted. Please note that 

looked after children, previously looked after children and those allocated a place at the school in 

accordance with the Fair Access protocol must take precedence over those on the waiting list. 

This waiting list will operate until 31 December 2024. 
 

Page 12



Published admission numbers (PAN) for Community and Voluntary 

Controlled Schools 
 

 2022 2023 2024 

Audley Community Infant School  105 90 90 

Audley Community Junior School  105 105 105 

Avondale Community Primary School  60 60 60 

Brookhouse Community Primary School  30 30 30 

Cedars Community Primary School  60 60 60 

Daisyfield Community Primary School  40 40 40 

Feniscowles Community Primary School  60 60 60 

Griffin Park Community Primary School  30 30 30 

Holy Trinity CE Controlled Primary School  60 60 60 

Intack Community Primary School  60 60 60 

Lammack Community Primary School  70 90 90 

Longshaw Community Infant School  90 90 90 

Longshaw Community Junior School  90 90 90 

Lower Darwen Community Primary School  60 60 60 

Meadowhead Community Infant School  60 60 60 

Meadowhead Community Junior School  60 60 60 

Roe Lee Park Community Primary School  60 60 60 

Shadsworth Community Infant School  60 60 60 

Shadsworth Community Junior School  60 60 60 

St Michael With St John CE Primary School  45 45 45 

St Thomas CE Primary School  60 60 60 

Turton and Edgworth CE/Methodist Controlled Primary School  30 30 30 

Turton Belmont Community Primary School  14 14 14 

 

Page 13



EMD: V1/21 Page 1 of 3 

EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION 
REPORT OF:  
 

Executive Member for Children, Young People 
and Education 

LEAD OFFICERS: Strategic Director of Children's & Education 
(DCS) 

 

DATE: 03 February 2023 

 
PORTFOLIO/S 
AFFECTED:  
 

Children, Young People and Education 

WARD/S AFFECTED:  (All Wards);                                  

 
SUBJECT: EMD Proposed School Admissions Arrangements 2024-2025 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
To advise the Executive Member of the Local Authority’s proposed admission arrangements for the 
2024/25 academic year.  

 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the Executive Member for Children, Young People & Education formally determines the proposed 
admission arrangements for 2024/25 as attached at Appendices 1, 2 and 3. 
 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
The Borough Council is the admissions authority for community and voluntary controlled schools in 
Blackburn with Darwen and has a statutory duty to act in accordance with the provisions of the School 
Admissions Code 2021.  
 
As the admission authority for all community and voluntary controlled schools, the statutory 
responsibility for determining and publishing the admission arrangements for those schools rests with 
the Local Authority.  
 
Under the current School Admissions Code, all admission authorities are required to “determine” (i.e. 
formally agree) their admission arrangements annually by 28 February even if those arrangements have 
not been changed from previous years. In addition, the School Admissions Code also stipulates that 
admission authorities must consult on their admission arrangements at least once every seven years, 
even if there have been no changes during that period.  
 
Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council last undertook consultation in 2019 in respect of the 2021/22 
admissions round in order to meet their statutory obligations to consult at least every seven years.  
 
The admissions arrangements provide clear and concise information to support parents and pupils to 
make informed choices when making applications for school places.  
 

 
 

Page 14



EMD: V1/21 Page 2 of 3 

4. KEY ISSUES & RISKS 
The Local Authority would be in breach of its statutory duties if it failed to determine annually the 
admissions arrangements for its community and voluntary controlled schools (or if it failed to consult as 
and when required by the School Admissions Code 2021).  
 
5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
None 
 
 
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
None 
 
 
7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Appropriately determining admission arrangements for community and voluntary controlled schools fulfils 
the Local Authority’s statutory duties under relevant legislation and the School Admissions Code 2021.  
 
The Local Authority would be in breach of its statutory duties if it failed to determine annually the 
admissions arrangements for its community and voluntary controlled schools and if it did not consult 
publicly on its school admissions arrangements at least once every 7 years (or in a year where it wishes to 
adopt admission arrangements which are substantially different from the admissions arrangements for the 
previous academic year).  
 
The determination and publication of our admissions arrangements by 28 February 2023 ensures that the 
Local Authority is compliant with the requirements of the School Admissions Code 2021. 
 
 
8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Managed through established staffing resource. 
 

 
9. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
Please select one of the options below.  Where appropriate please include the hyperlink to the 
EIA. 
 
Option 1    Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required – the EIA checklist has been completed. 
 
Option 2    In determining this matter the Executive Member needs to consider the EIA associated 
with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA link here) 
 
Option 3    In determining this matter the Executive Board Members need to consider the EIA 
associated with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA attachment) 
 

10. CONSULTATIONS 
The School Admissions Code also stipulates that admission authorities must consult on their admission 
arrangements at least once every seven years, even if there have been no changes during that period. In 
2019, Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council undertook their seven year consultation with key 
stakeholders in respect of the 2021/22 admissions arrangements.  

 
11. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE  

Page 15



EMD: V1/21 Page 3 of 3 

The recommendations are made further to advice from the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 
Officer has confirmed that they do not incur unlawful expenditure.  They are also compliant with 
equality legislation and an equality analysis and impact assessment has been considered.  The 
recommendations reflect the core principles of good governance set out in the Council’s Code of 
Corporate Governance. 
 
 
12. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
All Declarations of Interest of any Executive Member consulted and note of any dispensation granted 
by the Chief Executive will be recorded and published if applicable. 
 

VERSION: 1 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
Sarah Anderson, Place Planning & Admissions Coordinator 

Alfred Cotton, Graduate Management Trainee – Schools & Education 

DATE: 09/12/2022 

BACKGROUND 
PAPER: 

Appendix 1: Admission policy for community and voluntary controlled infant 
and primary schools for 2024/25 academic year 

Appendix 2: Admission policy for community controlled junior schools for 
2024/25 academic year  

Appendix 3: Published Admission Numbers for 2024/25, Community and 
Voluntary Controlled Schools  

 

Page 16


	Agenda
	1 Proposed School Admissions Arrangements 2024 - 2025
	Appendix 2 Admission policy for community controlled junior schools for 202425 academic year
	Appendix 3 Published admission numbers for 202425
	EMD Proposed School Admissions Arrangements 2024-2025


